Council Chambers November 4, 2025

Vigo County Government Center
Terre Haute, Indiana

Present: Mark Clinkenbeard, Chris Switzer, Mike Morris

Others present: Auditor Larry Hutchings, Chief Deputy Auditor Jennifer Werth, Attorney Terry Modesitt,
Tammy York-Allen, Bob Rhodes, Brandon Sakbun, Josie Thompson, Tona Bean, Christina Patterson, Jim
Hunter, Bob Murray, Jordynne Gackle, Devan Gackle, Chris Eldredge, Diana Smith, Joni Wise, Bruce
Allen, Larry Robbins, Bill Watson, Scott Swan, Kevin Gardner, Billy Caldero, Norm Loudermilk, several
members of the public.

Pledge of Allegiance. Mark Clinkenbeard called the meeting to order at 9:04 a.m.

Review of minutes/claims

Auditor Larry Hutchings presented the Board with the minutes from the October 28th, 2025
Commissioners’ Méeeting. Mike Morris made a motion to approve the October 28, 2025 Commissioners’
Meeting minutes as presented. Chris Switzer seconded the motion. With a voice vote of 3-0 the motion
was passed.

The claims docket dated October 24, 2025 through October 31, 2025 in the amount of $5,095,089.91 was
presented to the Board. Chris Switzer made a motion to approve the claims docket dated October 24,
2025 through October 31, 2025 in the amount of $5,095,089.91. Mike Morris seconded the motion. The
motion passed upon a 3-0 vocal vote.

Warming Centers

Terre Haute Mayor Brandon Sakbun approached the Board and gave a presentation on a potential
warming center plan for the winter months. He said the proposed primary partner for the plan would be
the Pathways Day Center operated by Reach Services. He went over proposed funding models for the
plan and said criteria for opening the warming center will be more aobjective, outlining the weather
variables required to open the centers. Brandon said he was asking the Commissioners to approve
$12,000 to match Terre Haute city's contribution for this plan. He said he would also like the Board to
endorse a Memorandum of Understanding between the city, the county, and Reach Services. Mark
Clinkenbeard asked how many people could be housed at this shelter. Brandon Sakbun said 70 people
could be housed. He said the homeless count in the area was 194 citing the most recent point & time
count. Mike Morris asked if Vigo County Health Department Administrator Joni Wise had input. Joni Wise
approached the Board and said she would like more definite answers on the financial cost for this plan.
Chris Switzer said he believed there were more homeless in the area than the point & time count shows.
He said he didn’t believe the amount proposed to be budgeted for this potential plan would be enough.
Brandon Sakbun said the costs outlined in this presentation primarily focused on staffing for the centers.
Chris Switzer encouraged Brandon to present this plan to the Vigo County Council to better understand if
the County could move forward with the prosed plan.



LOW Contract

Board Attorney Terry Modesitt explained there was a master contract with Low Associates signed several
years earlier and he did not have a problem with this approval. Mike Morris made a motion to approve the
additional services from LOW Associates. Chris Switzer seconded the motion. The motion passed 3-0.

Conveying Property to the CDC

Chris Swtizer explained there was a quitclaim deed before the Commissioners to convey a property to the
Vigo County Community Development Corporation. Chris said several years ago the Commissioners
signed the lease to Tim and Kelly Drake to lease this property for their concert venue. He said there was
a never an intention to own this property forever and it was the intent to convey this property to the CDC
for them to sell it to Tim and Kelly for a price that was to be determined. Chris said today’s action would
move the property to the CDC so they could sell it to Tim and Kelly. Terry Modesitt said he did not have a
problem with this action, and this would place the property back onto the tax rolls. Chris Switzer made a
motion to approve the quitclaim deed. Mike Morris seconded the motion. The motion passed 3-0.

Mark Clinkenbeard then asked Engineering Director Larry Robbins to give an update on various
construction projects across the county. Larry Robbins provided brief updates on several road projects.
Larry said Hasselberger Bridge work was wrapping up and the plan was to have it open by the following
week. Larry said the County had received approval for their Next Level Trails Grant for work on the Riley
Spur Trail Larry said he hoped work would be complete on that by 2026

Public Comment

William Caldero approached the Board and explained he was a new Veteran's Service Officer in Vigo
County. He said Vickie Albright had retired in September. He provided brief updates on Veteran's Service
in the county. He noted the Veteran’s Day parade would be the following Tuesday at 10am.

Comments or other business from Commissioners or other Elected Officials.
Mark Clinkenbeard noted the following meeting would be moved to November 12" due to Veteran’s day.

Chris Switzer thanked Bob Murray from the Vigo County Taxpayer's Association for his comments at the
previous Vigo County Council meeting.



The meeting was recessed at 9:35 am. / j///
7/118//" l'..-f/\

Mark

Chris Switer

;mkg Mris 7 7

Attest:

% [ ,Z% 22/
=7 {( P pely
Larry T. Hutchings Il, Additor




